
ADDENDUM #9

DATE: March 22, 2024 

TO: Prospective Proposers 

RE: Addendum #9 
Electronic Access & Video Surveillance 
Tyler Junior College   
RFP #24-07 

NOTICE TO PROPOSERS: 

This Addendum forms a part of the Request for Proposal.  Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum 
in the space provided on the Vendor Verification Form.  Failure to do so may subject Proposer to 
disqualification.  

QUESTION #1:  Per the last onsite meeting, OTS said it was safe to assume that the conduit to the 
light poles was free and clear.   

1. Is there pull string available in each pole?  The only existing conduit to poles today
is in Rogers Nursing and Health Sciences building and there is currently fiber from
the MDF in that building to the corresponding pole in the conduit.  No other
conduits exist today to any parking lot location, but TJC will provide conduit with
a pull string.

2. Do the conduit paths go straight to the MDF of the nearest building, or daisy chain
with other light poles?  Undetermined at this point.  There will be a handhole or
pull box located outside (exterior of building) between the nearest IDF and the
designated poles.

3. Can we get conduit pathway diagrams?  Diagrams do not exist, to our knowledge,
of the conduit pathways in the RNHS parking lot.

ANSWER:   See answers above. 

QUESTION #2:  Regarding the Critical Criteria section and the “straightforward plan on reissuing 
IDs”, can you further define what you are seeking with this question.  Are you asking about 
reissuing IDs in general or reissuing temporary IDs? 

ANSWER:  First, there needs to be a plan and demonstrated implementation/development in place 
for integration between the access control solution and our Elucian Banner SIS/ERP and Windows 
AD for onboarding/enrollment purposes.  Second, reissuing IDs or issuing temporary IDs needs to 
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be a simple process that can be handled by multiple personnel in different departments.  There are 
users in Campus Police and in Residential Life (student housing) that perform reissuing and issuing 
temporary IDs daily, so this process needs to be simple and have an easy knowledge transfer from 
staff to staff.  
 
QUESTION #3:  Are prevailing wages required for labor? 
 
ANSWER:  Yes.  
 
QUESTION #4:  In terms of storing equipment, is there a secure location on campus available for 
use or do we need to make arrangements for warehousing equipment? 
 
ANSWER:  The College will make arrangement for warehousing equipment on the Main or West 
campuses.   
 
QUESTION #5:  Addendum 8 states the College is working with another vendor for door 
hardware.  Is this for all door hardware to include door contacts and request to exists, or locking 
hardware only? 
 
ANSWER:   Locking hardware only.  
 
QUESTION #6:  In Addendum 4, pages 4-19, are satellite maps with cameras and field of view 
notations.  Are these maps representations of existing cameras or the desired locations of new 
cameras? 
 
ANSWER:  A combination of existing camera locations and desired locations.  The campus map 
on page 3 shows the desired locations for new exterior cameras.  Pages 4-19 represent current 
exterior camera locations and views.  
 
QUESTION #7:  Do you have an approximate number of how many pole mounts, arm mounts, or 
pendant mounts are needed for the cameras? 
 
ANSWER:  No, we do not.   
 
QUESTION #8:  Addendum 5, Binder #1:  What is the building name of page 16, is this the OC 
building? 
 
ANSWER:  Dual Credit.  
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QUESTION #9:  Addendum 5, Binder #1:  Building OC does not show door types and closet 
locations.  Please clarify if there are any door needs.  A note indicates the closet is on the third 
floor.  Please provide a print for the third floor. 
 
ANSWER:   An updated map of the second floor of OC has been attached with the IDF marked. 
 
QUESTION #10:  Addendum 5, Binder #1:  In the Campus Security Annex I and II, please identify 
the door needs.  The door legend is not utilized on these pages.  One door is indicated and two 
others are not. 
 
ANSWER:  Only exterior doors will be included in the bid.  One virtual; four outside readers; one 
inside.  
 
QUESTION #11:  Addendum 5, Binder #1:  At the Pat Hartley building, page 37, please identify 
the door needs.  The door legend is not utilized on these pages.  Are all of these doors considered 
“exterior without access control”?  What is the cable path to the concessions center? 
 
ANSWER:  An updated floor plan for the Pat Hartley building has been attached with the doors 
and IDF marked. The concession center will not have access control.   
 
QUESTION #12:  Addendum 5, Binder #1:  At the Vaughn Hall building, page 39, please explain 
the comment “IDF on the outside of the building”.  If so, we need to know where it is and if we 
need outside plant cable. 
 
ANSWER: The IDF has been moved to a closet inside Vaughn Hall and an updated map with the 
IDF marked has been attached.  
 
QUESTION #13:  Addendum 5, Binder #1:  Is page 41 and 42 the WCA building as shown on the 
table of contents, or is it the Jean Browne Theater, which is not given?  Please indicate the closet(s) 
locations. 
 
ANSWER:  Page 41 is the first floor of WCA. The second floor will not have access control but a 
map will be included in the next addendum. Page 42 is the Welcome Center.  
 
QUESTION #14:  Addendum 5, Binder #1:  Page 43 and 44 does not show an IT closet. 
 
ANSWER:  Attached an updated floor plan with the exterior IDF marked for Lewis and Wesley 
Hall. 
 
QUESTION #15:  Addendum 5, Binder #2:  Doors types, counts, closets are not given for the 
Energy Center 1st and 2nd floors, page 49 and 50. 
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ANSWER:  The only IDF in the Energy Center is located on the 3rd floor where all data and door 
connections are located.  Existing CBORD equipment is located in this IDF.  There are no exterior 
doors on the 2nd floor of the Energy Center and the front doors currently have CBORD access 
control.  Door information and counts should be included in the documentation provided by 
facilities.  The marked-up blueprint was also included in the attachments.   
 
QUESTION #16:  Addendum 5, Binder #2:  The note on page 54 states the only IDF is on the 
second floor.  A second floor plan is not given. 
 
ANSWER:  A map of the second floor of Grace has been attached with the IDF marked.  
 
QUESTION #17:  Addendum 5, Binder #2:  The note on page 56 states the IDF is on the second 
floor.  A second floor plan is not given.  To which location shall we terminate the cables? 
 
ANSWER:  A floor plan for the 2nd floor of Vaughn Library has been attached with the IDF 
marked.  
 
QUESTION #18:  Addendum 5, Binder #2:  Doors types, counts, closets are not given for the 
second, third, and fourth floors of Ornelas Hall, page 60, 61 and 62. 
 
ANSWER:  Floor plans for the 2nd-4th floor of Ornelas Halls have been attached with the Onity 
doors marked.  
 
QUESTION #19:   
 

Sites that have Clean Maps provided, but no Access Control markups found:  
a. Jenkins Hall 

i. Floor 2 
b. Vaughn Conservatory 
c. New Welcome Center 
d. Wesley House – West Hall 

i. Floors 1-2 
e. White Administrative Services Center 

i. Floors 1-3 
f. Wise Cultural Arts 

i. Floors 1-2 
g. Ornelas Center 

i. Floor 2 
h. Ornelas A&B 

i. Floors 2-4 (both A & B) 
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ii. Onity locks are not specifically marked on each floor. Is it possible to get 
these? 

i. Energy Center 
i. Floors 1-2 

 
ANSWER:  Jenkins 2nd floor will not have any access control or cameras, so a map was not 
included. All other maps have been attached.  
 
QUESTION #20:  Addendum 8 and others clarify the way to bid cabling to the door.  However, 
the Onity locks/levers themselves are door hardware.  Are we to quote replacing the locks/levers 
themselves, or is that to be a part of the door hardware bid? 
 
ANSWER:  That will be part of the separate hardware bid; not included in this proposal.  
 
QUESTION #21:  As the Onity locks are being replaced, one way or another, this RFP has 
requested cabling to each door, opting for door hardware later.  Cabling to a door and a reader will 
have quite a variance in submitted costs as cable/conduit labor to a reader will be largely offset by 
the installation of wireless locks.  How will the College grade/weigh these two possible proposed 
options in spite of the cost differential? 
 
ANSWER:  Wired locks are the preference, but we understand that wireless locks, that can be 
demonstrated as a reliable solution, may be more cost effective.   
 
QUESTION #22:  White Administrative Services and OTS are combined on maps and both had 
observable CBORD readers, but were not marked on the clean maps provided for WASC. 

1. Could the College provide these designated markups? 
2. Should OTS and WASC be considered separate facilities when bidding? 
3. Should OTS and WASC be considered separate facilities in the Access Control Software 

Programming? 
 
ANSWER:   

1. An updated map has been attached. 
2. No. 
3. Yes, they should be set up as separate facilities in the software.  

 
QUESTION #23:  Similarly noted to 2, Wagstaff Gymnasium has two CBORD readers marked 
along the north facing exterior (near locker entry), but there was only one observable on the walk.  
As the bid is to cover all exterior doors, should this door be an assumed desired reader location 
regardless of absence?   
 
ANSWER:  Yes, all exterior doors will need to be included in the bid.  

Page 5 of 73



 

 

QUESTION #24:  Noted that counts for Wesley House (Lewis and West) reflect the following: 
1. Wesley House Lewis – drawing shows mark-up for 27 Onity locks, but addendum says 36. 
2. Wesley House West – no mark-up on drawing to perform counts, but addendum says 27. 
3. Are these numbers possibly flipped? 
4. Will there be a marked-up Wesley Hall West drawing? 

 
ANSWER:  There are 27 locks in Lewis and West.  An updated map has been attached.  
 
QUESTION #25:  Sites that say they have interior cameras but do not have a marked map in 
Addendum 4:  Claridge Hall. 
 
ANSWER:  An updated map has been attached.  
 
QUESTION #26:  Are there more floors with cameras that didn’t have their map in VI? 

1. Example: Wagstaff Gymnasium cameras for the south portion of the 1st floor only 
provided. 

2. White Administration had 1st and 3rd floor, but are there any on the 2nd floor? 
 
ANSWER:  Yes, only the floor plans with the field of view cone are mapped in VI. The others are 
not currently in our VI map module. There are no cameras in the other half of the Wagstaff 
Gymnasium or 2nd floor of WASC. 
 
QUESTION #27:  Cameras listed in addendum by model as in VI total 582 (581 if the 2N intercom 
is not included). 

1. It’s mentioned that 14 cameras are blurry.  Is it possible the College could specify which 
cameras by building are blurry from VI? 

2. Some counts don’t have visual confirmation of counts: 
a. Apache Recreation Center – Addendum says 13 cameras; however, the APC 

drawing provided is interior only and marks 5 cameras. 
b. Rogers Student Center – Addendum says 56 cameras, but drawing counts are 

interior (21) and exterior (8) as marked. 
c. Robert M. Rogers Nursing & Health Sciences – Addendum says 50 cameras, but 

drawing counts are interior (29) and exterior (14) as marked. 
 
ANSWER: 

1. These cameras have been designated in the attached report with the camera name in 
red. 

2.  
a. An updated map of the Apache Rec Center has been attached. 
b. There are additional cameras in the testing center that makes up the difference. It is 

a very small area and difficult to illustrate the locations and views. These are all 
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listed in the VI camera by building report. The VI report will show all of the 
cameras and specify which are in the testing center. (RSCTST) 

d. Cameras are listed in the attached report. 
 
QUESTION #28:  The Addendum states the College provides servers in question XX.  Is the 
College looking for servers to be quoted to match any resolution increases? 
 
ANSWER:  We are currently using virtual servers.  If a virtual server is not supported, then please 
include server pricing in the bid.   
 
QUESTION #29:  Noted that several cameras have smoke domes or clear domes.   

1. Was this by choice on specific cameras or result of individual jobs providing smoke 
domes? 

2. Does the campus prefer smoke domes or clear domes? 
 
ANSWER:  The existing smoke dome cameras were a result of individual jobs providing smoke 
domes.  We do not have a preference if the domes are smoke or not.  
 
QUESTION #30:  Greatly appreciate the effort in using IPVM to plot cameras for the bid.  
However, the orange can be difficult to differentiate with crossing FOVs on the exterior  camera 
plots. 
 
Example: 
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1. Wagstaff Gym – Interior 2, Exterior 2, Addendum says 7 
2. Ornelas Center – Interior 24, Exterior 8, Addendum says 30 

a. Are some Ornelas considered Wagstaff or vice versa? 
3. In continuation of the above, here is the Crossroads Hall provision. 
4. Counting by this location, it’s legible as 11 cameras.  Does the VI software have a naming 

convention set up to determine if a camera is interior or exterior, and can that report be 
pulled by the staff or manufacturer assistance? 

 

 
 
 
ANSWER:  A report has been attached that shows the number of cameras in each building.  The 
camera names should show if it is an interior or exterior camera.  
 
QUESTION #31:  How many V1000 controllers are there currently? 
 
ANSWER: 17 (see attached).  
 
QUESTION #32:  Do the new dorm locks require a manual key override?  If so, do we need to 
provide cylinders or will the College provide them?  If we are to provide, can you provide 
information on the cylinder required to ensure compatibility with the current keys (i.e. Sargent, 
Corbin Russwin, etc.)?  
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ANSWER:   Yes, manual key override is required.  Contractor to provide Corbin Russwin D blank 
cylinders.   
 
QUESTION #33:  Please confirm Access Control design intent from Addendum 05: Is the proposal 
presented by each vendor to only quote 2 new doors per building shown on the list of buildings? 

a. If this is the design intent for quoting the ACS in this bid, please verify the number 
of buildings. The building list shows 38 buildings. 

b. If this is not the design intent for quoting the ACS in this bid, is the intent to quote 
to take over ALL doors existing and provide hardwired new doors where specified? 

c. If 1.b is the accurate design intent, would you verify that the number of new hard-
wired doors is 319 as previously stated? 

 
ANSWER:  The design intent is for two exterior doors per building to have reader access and all 
remaining exterior doors for each building to have access control as virtual doors.   
 
QUESTION #34:  In addendum 05 it is mentioned that the remaining doors are to be "virtual". Is 
this intended to require a like-for-like replacement of the Onity locks? 

a. If so, is the desire to replace the Onity locks with another "wireless" lock? 
b. If not, is the desire to replace the Onity locks with a unified, hard-wired solution? 

 
ANSWER:  Virtual doors as we define them are those doors that are controlled by access control 
but do not have readers. Wired locks are the preference, but we understand that wireless locks, that 
can be demonstrated as a reliable solution, may be more cost effective. 
 
QUESTION #35:  Please confirm server architecture intent.  Will all archiving be centralized in a 
single location? 
 
ANSWER:  Yes, in the TJC data center.  
 
QUESTION #36:  Will there be a requirement for any workstations at any location other than a 
centralized security/operations center? 
 
ANSWER:  No. 
 
QUESTION #37:  Addendum 07 calls for a unification of cameras under one manufacturer.  Is 
your intent to replace all cameras, including existing cameras already under the proposed 
manufacturer? 
 
ANSWER:  Potentially, but not necessarily.    
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QUESTION #38:  Addendum 07 states that TJC will provide the guidelines for a service 
agreement.  Is this to be included with this RFP or will this be confirmed afterward with the 
awarded vendor? 
 
ANSWER:   We do not have a draft, but the details will be worked out between the College and 
awarded vendor.   
 
QUESTION #39:   The provided floorplans for Ornelas Hall do not contain the color coding for 
having Onity locks.  Should we include in our design to include locks for the dorm rooms in this 
building also? 
 
ANSWER:   See attached map.  
 
QUESTION #40:  Would TJC be able and/or willing to provide physical addresses of each building 
associated with this project as shown in the list of buildings? 
 
ANSWER:  The majority of these are 911 addresses only.   
     

BUILDING NAME PHYSICAL ADDRESS 
Baldwin Facilities & Construction 1401 East Devine St. 

Bateman Hall 1414 Magnolia 

Campus Safety 1025 S. Baxter 

Claridge Hall 1121 S. Baxter Ave. 

Douglas Family Learning Center 1508 N. Haynie 

Genecov 1413 E. Lake St. 

Grace Building 1305 S. Baxter Ave. 

Ornelas Center BAD 1205 S. Palmer St. 

Holley Hall 1300 S. Baxter Ave. 

Hudnall Hall 1018 S. Baxter Ave. 

CESSE 1411 E. Lake 

Jacksonville Campus 501 S. Ragsdale  Jacksonville, TX 75766 

Jenkins Hall 1400 E. Fifth St. 

Apache Recreation  Center (ARC) 1914 E. Devine 
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TJC North (Lindale) 
75 Miranda Lambert Way, #16 Lindale 
75771 

Satellite Plant 1701 Adair 

Ornelas Residential Complex East 1203 S Porter St. 

Ornelas Residential Complex West 1202 S. Blackwell 

Pirtle Technology Center 1110 S. Mahon 

Potter Hall 1400 E. Fifth St.(inside campus) 

Campus Services  1327 S. Baxter Ave. 
Regional Training and Development 
Center (TJC West) 1530 SSW Loop 323 

Residential Life & Housing 1415 S. Baxter Ave. 

Rogers Student Center 1401 E. Lake 

Rusk Campus 805 N. Dickinson #627 Rusk, TX 75785 

Skills Training Center/Energy Center 1540 SSW Loop 323 

Sledge Hall 1201 S. Baxter Ave. 
JoAnn Medlock Murphy Tennis 
Center 1010 S. Palmer 

Tyler Museum of Art 1300 S. Mahon 

Vaughn Conservatory 1400 E. Fifth St.(inside Campus) 

Vaughn Hall 1310 S. Baxter Ave. 

Vaughn Library 1400 E. Fifth St.(inside campus) 

Wagstaff Gymnasium 1700 Apache Pass 

Pat Hartley Soccer Complex 1300 S. Palmer 

Wesley House (Old West Hall) 1400 E. Lake St. 

Wesley House (Old Lewis Hall) 1404 E. Lake St. 

White Administration Services Center 1390 S. Baxter Ave. 

Wise Cultural Arts Center 1305 S. Mahon 

Rogers-Palmer Cultural Arts 1303 S. Mahon 

Louise Brookshire Tennis Courts 1100 S. Mahon 

Page 11 of 73



 

 

Wesley Foundation Building 1421 S. Baxter Ave. 

Athletic Football Fieldhouse 1300 S. Palmer 

Crossroads Hall 1250 Magnolia 

Rogers Nursing 1200 E. Fifth 

Softball Field 810 S. Porter 

Welcome Center - 5th and Baxter 1232 E. 5th 

Office Building on Baxter 1427 Baxter 
 
 
 
 
End 
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